

CONTENTS

Click below to navigate.

- 3 Welcome
- 3 NJCAA Mission Statement
- 3 Tournament Personnel
- 4 Schedule of Events
- 5 Pre-Championship Barbecue
- 5 Coaches Meeting
- 5 Qualifying Standards
- 6 Post-Championship Awards
- 7 Tournament Deadlines
- 7 COVID-19 Policies and Procedures
- 7 Venue Information
- 8 Tickets
- 8 Parking
- 8 Rules Official
- 8 Team Travel & Transportation
- 9 Hotels
- 10 Medical
- 10 Credentials
- 11 Programs & Merchandise
- 13 NJCAA Network
- 13 NJCAA Code of Conduct & Sportsmanship Policy
- 18 Appendix



WELCOME

On behalf of the National Junior College Athletic Association and Odessa College, congratulations on your qualification to the 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf Championship! The four-day event will be held at the Odessa Country Club: Links Course in Odessa, TX from May 10-13. This pre-championship packet will serve as an indepth guide for the championship and includes visitor information on the City of Odessa.

We look forward to welcoming you in Odessa and wish you the best of luck!

NJCAA MISSION STATEMENT

It is the mission of the National Junior College Athletic Association (NJCAA) to promote and foster a national program of two-year college athletic participation in an environment that supports equitable opportunities consistent with the educational objectives of member colleges.

Unlawful discrimination is incompatible with this mission and detracts from the organization's goal of promoting healthy and fair competition. The NJCAA prohibits unlawful discrimination based on sex, race, color, national origin, ancestry, disability, religion, creed, sexual orientation, age or any other characteristic protected by applicable law in the NJCAA's governance, programs, regulations and employment practices.

ABOUT THE NJCAA

Since 1938, the NJCAA has served as the nation's premier governing body for two-year collegiate athletics, providing student-athletes opportunities to PREPARE, COMPETE, SUCCEED and ACHIEVE in their academic and athletic disciplines. The NJCAA is the second-largest national intercollegiate athletic organization in the United States, with over 500 member schools in 44 states. Each year over 3,400 teams compete in 28 different sports across multiple divisions in the NJCAA and the organization sponsors 52 national championship events and sanctioned football bowl games.

For more information, visit: NJCAA.org

TOURNAMENT PERSONNEL

POSITION	NAME	PHONE NUMBER	EMAIL
Co-Tournament Director	Wayne Baker	(432) 335-6567	wbaker@odessa.edu
Co-Tournament Director	Kevin Schlegel	(432) 335-6574	kschlegel@odessa.edu
Secretary / GolfStat Contact	Kevin Schlegel	(432) 335-6574	kschlegel@odessa.edu
Athletic Trainer	Jeff Kelly	(432) 335-6570	jkelly@odessa.edu
Media Relations	Frank Rich	(432) 335-6507	frich@odessa.edu
Rules Official	Mickey Jones	(432) 335-1600	
Odessa Country Club	Jake McCullough	(432) 272-4500	jmccullough@odessacc.com
NJCAA Representative	Molly Simons	(719) 590-9788	msimons@njcaa.org

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

HOST GOLF COURSE

Odessa Country Club

#1 Fairway Drive Odessa, TX 79765 (432) 272-4510 www.odessacc.com

All tournament and practice rounds will be played at the Odessa Country Club Links Course. There is a driving range and practice areas on site.

PRACTICES

Practice Round Tee-Times will be assigned to all teams and individuals

- Sunday May 8th
 - 1:30 pm Shotgun Start
 - One tee location per team
- Monday May 9th
 - 9:30 am Shotgun Start
 - One tee location per team

Practice Facilities:

The Odessa Country Club practice facilities will be open to players prior to tee times during practice and tournament rounds. Range balls are included with entry fee.

The practice range, located near the clubhouse, will be open 45 minutes prior to the first tee times each day.

Post Round practice site will be located on the far north section of the driving range.

TEE TIMES AND PAIRINGS

Tee times and pairings for the practice rounds and the first two days of competition will be pre-scheduled. Please find the pairings and tee time sheets in your packet. Tee times will also be available on the Tournament Website Information Page.

SCHEDULE OVERVIEW

Friday, April 22	Team Information, Photo, and Logo due. See Team Information section for more details.
Monday, May 2	Entry forms due. See Tournament Deadlines section for more details.
Friday, May 6	No Play on course by any participant or coach
Saturday, May 7	No Play on course by any participant or coach
Sunday, May 8	Registration 10:00am to 1:00pm Odessa Country Club Performance Center
	First Practice Round; Shotgun start @ 1:30 p.m.
	7:30pm – Coaches Meeting (Odessa Marriott)





Monday, May 9	Second Practice Round; 9:00 a.m. Shotgun Start
	Country Club Services Closed
	6:00pm – BBQ @ Ratliff Ranch Golf Course
Tuesday, May 10	First Round of Championship Competition
Wednesday, May 11	Second Round of Championship Competition
Thursday, May 12	Third Round of Championship Competition
Friday, May 13	Final Round of Championship Competition
	Awards Ceremony immediately following completion of play

PRE-CHAMPIONSHIP BARBECUE

The 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf Championship Barbecue will be held at Ratliff Ranch Golf Course on Monday, May 9th at 6:00pm.

7500 N Grandview Ave Odessa, TX 79765

The Barbecue is an integral part of the championship tournament experience and is an official tournament function. The Barbecue will be free of charge for those players/coach listed on the official roster. Tickets for those individuals will be given out at tournament check in.

Cost will be \$20.00 per person for anyone who wants to attend the Barbecue. Dress is golf casual. A short program will be presented during dinner.

COACHES MEETING

Coaches meeting will be held following the practice round on Sunday May, 8th at 7:30pm at the Marriott.

QUALIFYING STANDARDS

DISTRICT QUALIFIERS

During postseason play through the National Championship stroke play or match play, a team may substitute a sixth player for any member of the team, provided that:

- The NJCAA Golf Tournament Director and/or the NJCAA Representative is notified of the substitution at least 10 minutes prior to that team member's starting time.
- The sixth player is an eligible member of the institution's team.

Note: When a team has substituted a sixth player, the substitution becomes final 10 minutes prior to that team member's starting time and no further changes may be made by the team for that round. However, prior to the 10-minute mark, the team may withdraw the substitution by notifying the NJCAA Golf Tournament Director and/or the NJCAA Representative and may substitute for another player as provided above. The team member that was substituted for becomes the sixth player and the team is limited to that player, if the team wishes to substitute a player prior to any subsequent Championship round. In the women's event, if a player is entered as an individual, once they have begun play, they cannot be used as the sixth player for the team standings in subsequent rounds.



NJCAA will be divided into four Districts.

• Each District will qualify half of the number of teams filing eligibility for the spring semester, plus any of the top 10 individuals whose team does not qualify. Odd number of teams will round up.

2022 NJCAA DI MEN'S GOLF DISTRICTS			
DISTRICT	REGION(S)	DISTRICT	REGION(S)
Central	6, 11,	South Central	5, 14
Southeast	8, 10, 17, 22, 24	West	1, 9

- Each district will be required to determine their national qualifiers.
- After district qualifying is completed, if the number of qualifying teams is less than 24 teams, at-large teams will be added to complete the field of 24 teams. At-large teams will be selected on May 1 and will be identified by the highest ranking teams in the final NJCAA poll not already qualified. Teams must participate in the district qualifying tournament in order to be considered for at-large berths to the NJCAA National Tournament.
- If there is a host team/teams (not to exceed two by bid) they will receive an automatic bid if such teams fail to qualify.

Note: Half of the number of teams submitting eligibility for the Spring semester will qualify, plus any of the top 10 individuals whose team did not qualify. If after District play there are less than 24 teams, the Golf committee may select alternates to reach the 24 team maximum. At-Larges are selected based on the highest ranked teams in the poll not already qualified. Teams must have participated in the District to be considered.

POST-CHAMPIONSHIP AWARDS

- Trophies shall be given to the first, second, and third place teams.
- Each individual golfer on the first-place team shall receive an NJCAA gold medal. There shall be eight (8) medals.
- Each individual golfer on the second-place team shall receive an NJCAA silver medal. There shall be eight (8) medals.
- Silver and bronze medals will be awarded to the second and third place finishers, respectively.
- Medalist Award (plaque) shall be presented.
- Delnor Poss Coach of the Tournament Award shall be presented.
- The top-18 finishers shall be presented medals and site hole flags in recognition of their finish. These golfers will be designated as the All-Tournament Team. The United States Golf Association collegiate tie-breaking procedure will be used to break all ties within the top-18 finishers.



TOURNAMENT DEADLINES

All entries must be received by Odessa College no later than Monday, May 2nd 2022. Send Information to **wbaker@odessa.edu** & **kschlegel@odessa.edu**. Contact Tournament Directors in advance if you are unable to meet the deadline.

ENTRY FEE

- \$900.00 per team or \$160.00 per individual can be paid by check, credit card, or cash. Payment can be sent in with entry forms or paid in person at check in on May 8th.
- Make checks payable to: Odessa College
- Entry Fee Includes:
 - Two Practice Rounds
 - All Tournament Rounds
 - Coaches Golf Cart (1)
 - Access to Odessa Country Club Practice Facilities during practice rounds and tournament play.

FORMS

Entry forms must be received by Wayne Baker no later than Monday, May 2.

201 W. University, Odessa TX 79764

Email: wbaker@odessa.edu or kschlegel@odessa.edu

Entry forms include (see Appendix for all entry forms):

- · 2022 NJCAA D1 National Golf Tournament Official Team Roster
- Daily Coaching Assignment Sheet

COVID-19 POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

PROTOCOLS FOR 2021-22 SPRING NJCAA CHAMPIONSHIPS

Following the review of the 2021-22 NJCAA winter championships and evaluating the current COVID-19 landscape, the NJCAA <u>will not</u> require teams participating in 2022 NJCAA spring championships to complete the COVID-19 verification form (proof of negative test, vaccine, or COVID-19 within the last 90 days) and/or daily symptom tracking forms. Local and state health requirements should still be followed, but the NJCAA Championships COVID-19 policies will not be in effect for 2022 spring championship events.

For questions regarding COVID-19 protocols, please contact:

Darren Drake NJCAA Sports, Events, and Championships Associate ddrake@njcaa.org

VENUE INFORMATION

GOLF COURSE MARKINGS

Tee Markers – Specific "NJCAA" tee markers will be used on each tee box

Flag sticks & Hole Flags – Odessa College will provide flags and flag sticks for the 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf Championship. Each flag will have the hole number and the tournament logo on them.

PRE-CHAMPIONSHIP PACKET

GOLF CARTS

Golf Carts for spectator will be available for \$25.00 per day, as available from the Odessa Country Club proshop. Carts will be on a first come, first served basis. All spectator carts must remain on the cart paths at all times and must not interfere with play. Violations of the rules may result in suspension of cart use.

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PLAN

The Tournament Committee along with Odessa Country Club will develop an Emergency Evacuation Plan to evacuate players, staff, spectators, and NJCAA officials in the event of an emergency. This plan will be in effect beginning on Monday, May 9th and run throughout the duration of the 2022 Championship.

TICKETS

No Admission fee will be charged for spectators throughout the practice rounds and during tournament play.

All spectators will be requested to read and abide by the Championship Spectator Rules Card.

Spectators may not carry on conversations with players, carry players clothing or equipment nor shall a spectator supply a player with food or beverages during any official competition round, with the exception of emergency situations

PARKING

Parking at Odessa Country Club and Odessa Marriott and Convention Center will be available free of charge.

RULES OFFICIAL

USGA Rules Official, Mr. Mickey Jones will head the group of Rules Officials during the 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf Championship. Rules Officials will be positioned throughout the golf course during each of the four Championship Rounds. The Rules Officials will contact, by radio, Mr. Jones for confirmation of all Rules decisions.

Mr. Jones is the Tournament Rules Official and his decision to any ruling will be final.

TEAM TRAVEL & TRANSPORTATION

RENTAL CARS

Attending teams may rent large vans and other vehicle by contacting the rental car companies of their choice.

Avis, Budget, Enterprise, Hertz, National, & Thrifty are all located within the Midland International Air and Space Port (MAF) terminal.

AIRPORT INFORMATION

Midland International Air and Space Port (MAF)

- Located half way between Midland and Odessa.
- Approximately a 20 minute drive to the Odessa Marriott
- Southwest, American, and United Airlines fly in and out of MAF daily



HOTELS

TEAM HOTELS

In accordance with NJCAA regulations, all teams are required to stay at the Odessa Marriott Hotel.

The Odessa Marriott is the Official Team Hotel for the 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf Championship. The first priority for the rooms at this hotel are the teams.

Odessa Marriott Hotel & Conference Center 305 E. 5th St. Odessa, TX 79761 (432) 580-5805 www.marriott.com

All-Reservations must be made at the Odessa Marriott – NJCAA Golf National Teams must check in under their team name. A reservation code will be sent to each qualifying team for booking. Each team will be limited to five rooms, unless permission is granted by the tournament director.

All room blocks will be released approximately one week from the start of the first practice round of the tournament. Below is the anticipated room block based on 24 teams averaging four rooms each including coaches, players, and staff.

Saturday, May 7	Team Arrive	90 Rooms
Sunday, May 8	Practice Round	90 Rooms
Monday, May 9	Practice Round	90 Rooms
Tuesday, May 10	First Round	90 Rooms
Wednesday, May 11	Second Round	90 Rooms
Thursday, May 12	Third Round	90 Rooms
Friday, May 13	Final Round	50 Rooms

The reserved slot at the Marriott is for TEAMS ONLY, until May 4th at which time the rooms, if any remain, will be open to the public.

Team room rates of (\$99.00 per night) has been guaranteed for the Tournament

The Odessa Marriott is located in Downtown Odessa 10 minutes from Odessa Country Club and sits adjacent to downtown and is in proximity to area restaurants and attractions.

FAMILY & FRIENDS HOTELS

The MCM Elegante & Fun Dome will serve as the Official Hotel for Families and Friends.

MCM Fun Dome 6201 1-20BL Odessa, TX 79762 (432) 362-2311 www.mcmgrandeodessa.com

The MCM Elegante & Fun Dome will block off rooms for this event.

Room rates have been guaranteed for the Tournament.



Mention the 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf Championship when you contact the hotel to reserve your room at the tournament rate.

The MCM Elegante and Grande Fun Dome are located within 5 minutes of the Odessa Country Club and surrounding restaurants.

MCM Elegante - (432) 368-5885

MCM Grande Fun Dome - (432) 362-2311

MEDICAL

ATHLETIC TRAINING

A Certified Athletic Trainer will be on site for each competitive round.

Teams must supply all medical supplies for non-emergency treatment.

CHAMPIONSHIP MEDIAL CONTACTS

Athletic Trainer - Jeff Kelly

O- 432-335-6570 C- 432-770-9537 **jkelly@odessa.edu**

CREDENTIALS

TEAM CREDENTIALS

Team check-in will take place on Sunday May, 8th from 10:00am to 1:00pm at the Odessa Country Club Performance Center.

MEDIA CREDENTIAL REQUESTS

All non-participating team media may request a media credential request by completing the following form: **NJCAA Championship Media Credential Request Form**.

Requests must be submitted by the media agency's sports editor or news director. Non-participating team media includes, but is not limited to, the following: television news outlets, print newspapers, sports websites and blogs, radio, freelance photographers.

Once the media credential request is submitted, NJCAA National Office or the Championship Host will follow-up directly regarding the status of your credential request and next steps.

Any team media personnel, including sport information directors, team photographers, etc., should be included in the team credentials list and does not need to submit a media credential request.

For questions regarding media credential requests, please contact:

Elisabeth Schmidt NJCAA Athletics Communications Associate eschmidt@njcaa.org

HOSPITALITY

CHAMPIONSHIP HOSPITALITY

Water and drinks will be available on the golf course during the start of each day.

A hospitality room will be available at the Odessa Marriott hotel. This information will be discussed during the coaches meeting.

TEAM INFORMATION

Team information forms include (see Appendix for all team information forms):

College Team Information for 2022 Championship Program

TEAM PICTURE & LOGO

Each team participating in the 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf must provide the following:

- 5 x 7-inch color full-team photograph in a .jpg format
 - When submitting the photograph, please include identification of student-athletes, coaches, etc. This full-team photograph will be used in the official championship program.
- Team athletics logo in an .eps file or vector format

All team information forms, photos, and logos must be submitted no later then April 22, 2022 to Kevin Schlegel at **kschlegel@odessa.edu**.

PROGRAMS & MERCHANDISE

OFFICIAL CHAMPIONSHIP PROGRAM

One 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf Championship Program will be given to each player and coach at the Tournament Banquet.

Additional Championship Programs will be available for sale for \$5.00 each at the Tournament site.

MERCHANDISE

Official NJCAA national championship merchandise is provided exclusively by <u>Fine Designs</u> with an expansive list of items and customization options that include adding player numbers, team names and other NJCAA branded graphics to championship apparel. **Participating championship teams can order merchandise on-site or directly from Fine Designs prior to the championship.** Please see below for details on both options:

- Order and Pay Onsite: A team order can be placed on-site via a team order form and working directly with a Fine Designs rep. Payments can be made by credit/debit card or cash. Merchandise will be provided on-site. Team order forms will be provided on-site at the championship and can be accessed by visiting: Onsite Team Order Form. The Team order form must be submitted on-site and is not able to be submitted prior to the event.
- 2. Order Direct: Fine Designs can be contacted via email or phone to place a custom order for merchandise <u>prior to the championship</u>. The order can be paid by check or directly by the college. Merchandise will be shipped to the address and shipping method selected by the college. Contact Information for



Fine Designs to place an order is below. <u>Direct orders are not able to be shipped to the championship</u> site and will not be available for pick-up at the merchandise booth.

Email: Midlandcustomerservice@finedesigns.com

Phone: (859) 241-1265

To simplify your athletic department's expense management, CommercePayments' prepaid expense card allows administrators and coaches to streamline the process of providing teams with spending money.

For more information, contact:

Robyn Montoya Robyn.Montoya@CommerceBank.com

MEDIA RELATIONS

OFFICIAL NJCAA CHAMPIONSHIP WEBSITE

The official 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf Championship website can be found by visiting: <u>njcaa.org/champion-</u><u>ships/sports/mgolf/div1/index</u>

The official championship website contains the tournament schedule and results, photo galleries, historical archives, and more.

SOCIAL MEDIA

Follow the NJCAA on social media for the most up-to-date information surrounding the 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf Championship.



@NJCAA @NJCAAGolf





CHAMPIONSHIP RESULTS

The 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf Championship official scores will be posted on GolfStat and the official NJ-CAA championship website each day during the tournament. Live on course scoring will be recorded and posted after each hole of competition.

For questions regarding official scores, please contact:

Elisabeth Schmidt NJCAA Athletics Communications Associate eschmidt@njcaa.org

CHAMPIONSHIP PHOTO AND VIDEO REQUESTS

All media parties requesting access photos or video highlights from the 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf Championship should do so by completing the NJCAA Championship Media Request Form.

This form should be completed by participating team sport information directors or individuals from television news outlets, print newspapers, sports websites and blogs, or radio.



NJCAA NETWORK

All broadcasting rights (radio, TV, Internet streaming) of NJCAA Championship Events are exclusive to the NJCAA and the NJCAA will have final authority over all broadcasts. The NJCAA reserves the right to broadcast any of its championship events on its official digital network – NJCAA Network (**njcaa.org/network**) or any other third-party.

Any rebroadcast, retransmission, or other use of NJCAA Network broadcasts without written consent of the National Junior College Athletic Association is prohibited.

The 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf Championship will not be streamed on the NJCAA Network.

RADIO & TV BROADCASTING POLICIES

Radio and/or TV broadcasting will not be permitted for the 2022 NJCAA DI Men's Golf Championship. For further radio broadcasting inquiries, please contact **media@njcaa.org**.

NJCAA CODE OF CONDUCT & SPORTSMANSHIP POLICY

NJCAA CODE OF CONDUCT

This code of conduct applies to any and all contests/competition in which any NJCAA member college participates. Violations of the code of conduct occurring during the regularly scheduled season events shall be referred to the respective conference or region standards and ethics committee. The jurisdiction of the NJCAA Code of Conduct applies to all NJCAA member colleges and its representatives.

Code of Conduct

- A. Coaches and team personnel shall recognize the responsibility for proper conduct at any and all contests/competitions in which any NJCAA member college participates.
- B. Coaches shall recognize and assume responsibility for the actions of themselves and the team members. Each coach who has participants competing in the event shall be responsible for informing each participant about the Code of Conduct.

<u>Behavior</u>

Coaches, players and institutional personnel must remember that they are representatives of an institution of higher learning, its faculty, administration and student body. As such, they are expected to conduct themselves in a manner which would reflect credit on their team, institution, region and the NJCAA. Studentathletes, coaches and institutional personnel who are representing the NJCAA or NJCAA member colleges are subject to all NJCAA rules, regulations and penalties as stated in the NJCAA Handbook as well as local, state and federal laws.

Inappropriate and unacceptable behavior by coaches, players or institutional personnel will not be tolerated before, during, or after contests; at the hotel or in public while representing their college. This Code of Conduct does not replace Article XVIII of the NJCAA Handbook. Unacceptable forms of behavior include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Fighting
- 2. Taunting
- 3. Inappropriate celebration
- 4. Disrespectful attitude toward opponents, officials, tournament administrators



- 5. Use of profane and vulgar language
- 6. Use of drugs and/or alcohol, tobacco (including but not limited to e-cigarettes, vaping, etc.)
- 7. Disrespectful attitude toward host hotel personnel
- 8. Unlawful activities
- 9. Physical abuse or damage to college property or host hotel property.

Derogatory Comments

- A. Players, coaches and institutional personnel shall not make any derogatory public comments regarding contests, competitions or game officials at any time; in print, broadcast social media, news releases or any other communications where comments may become public. The head coach will be responsible for any derogatory comment made by any player, coach or institutional personnel.
- B. A coach shall not address or permit anyone from making uncomplimentary remarks to any game official before, during, and/or after any and all NJCAA member contests/competitions in which any NJCAA member participates.

<u>Reporting</u>

Violations of the Code of Conduct shall be reported to:

- 1. To the respective Region Director all regular season and region competition violations.
- 2. Postseason violations shall be reported to the Executive Director of the NJCAA or his/her designee.

Procedures - Immediate Action

Where immediate action is needed to alleviate or control a situation:

- During the championship, the Executive Director or his/her designee shall have the authority to act at his/her sole discretion. Examples of events which would require immediate action include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - Allegation of serious misconduct requiring immediate suspension of institutional personnel or student- athletes from competition.
 - Instances where the Executive Director or his/her designee deems it necessary to protect the equity and integrity of the competition.
 - Protection of the event's officiating program, particularly in an instance where public comments by an institutional representative may affect competition.
 - Any instance or circumstance which might affect the safety of officials, participants or spectators attending the event.

Penalties - Immediate Action

The Executive Director or his/her designee during championship competition may issue any penalty that he/ she believes appropriate to any student- athlete or institutional personnel who has violated the regulations pertaining to conduct when the Executive Director or his/her designee concludes that immediate action is required. The actions of the Executive Director or his/her designee, during the championship shall be final and binding but shall be reported to the NJCAA Board of Regents within one (1) week.

Penalties - Timely Action

Reprimand: The NJCAA Executive Director or NJCAA Board of Regents may issue a letter of reprimand to the coach, player or institutional personnel who violates the regulations pertaining to conduct. Copies of the letter of reprimand will be sent to the Director of Athletics, the President of the institution and the Region

PRE-CHAMPIONSHIP PACKET



Director and/or National Office.

Probation, suspension and other penalties: If the misconduct is serious enough, the Executive Director or his/her designee during championship competition may issue other penalties which may include, but are not limited to, probation, suspension or disqualification of the coach, player or institutional personnel from participating in one or more contests.

SPORTSMANSHIP

A basic principle of NJCAA athletic competition is to develop and foster respect for fellow participants, coaches, officials and spectators. Players, coaches and team personnel will recognize their responsibility for proper conduct before, during and after every contest. Coaches and Athletic Directors will recognize and assume responsibility for the behavior of themselves, players, staff, game management personnel and representatives of the respective NJCAA member institution.

<u>Violent</u>

Violent behavior is defined as:

- An act in which physical contact or an attempt to make physical contact occurs with the purpose to do damage, harm, intimidate, incite a fight or otherwise injure a player, coach, referee, spectator or game management personnel or damage property.
- Engaging in hostile or abusive language or harassment that refers to race, religion, sex, sexual orientation and national origin and/or other threatening language.
- An act in which any bench personnel other than the head coach (or in the absence of the head coach the acting head coach) leave the bench area or designated warm-up area when a fight may break out or has broken out.
- When dealing with the football targeting rule, if a foul is called, the following will be adhered to as taken from the sport rulebook.
 - As targeting is a penalty, it would not be considered a violent ejection, it would be part of the football rules and enforced within the football rulebook. If the foul occurs in the first half of a game, the player is ejected for the remainder of the game. If the foul occurs in the second half or overtime of a game, the player is ejected for the remainder of that game and the first half of the next contest.

<u>Penalties</u> - The following penalties will be assessed if a game official ejects a player, coach, team personnel, staff member, or game management personnel for violent unsportsmanlike behavior:

- Immediate ejection and removal from the venue as defined by sight and sound.
- Mandatory ejection and removal from the venue for any bench personnel other than the head coach who leaves the bench or designated warm up area when a fight may break out or has broken out.
- A two-contest suspension to be served during the next two regularly scheduled or postseason contests. Suspension of a coach or player at the end of a season of play shall carry over to the following season.
- Should a player, coach or team representative receive as their first two ejections, a violent and a non-violent ejection, in any order, they must serve a three (3) contest suspension.

PRE-CHAMPIONSHIP PACKET

2022 NJCAA DIVISION I MEN'S GOLF CHAMPIONSHIP



- Should the player, coach or team personnel be ejected for violent behavior a second time during the season, that individual shall be prohibited from participating in athletic contests of that institution for the remainder of the academic year, including postseason play.
- Penalties shall be imposed automatically by the offending institution with suspensions to be in effect for the next two regularly scheduled contests as appearing on the published schedule of the institution at the time of the ejection.
- The referee may end the contest.

Failure to report and/or comply

Failure to report and/or comply will result in:

- For the first occurrence, the penalties will double for the offending participant, with the head coach also serving the doubled portion of the penalty and a letter of reprimand shall be sent to the Director of Athletics and the President of the institution.
- For the second occurrence, the penalties will double, and a sanction of probation shall be given to the offending institution for that sport in that year.
- Games played during the time of failure to report and/or failure to comply with Article XV, Section
 3.A. must be forfeited

<u>Non-Violent</u>

<u>Definition</u> - Non-violent unsportsmanlike behavior is defined as profanity, vulgar gestures, trash talking, taunting or abusive language directed at players, coaches, referees, game management personnel and/or spectators. The use of tobacco or alcohol during NJCAA sponsored events is prohibited within this rule.

<u>Penalties</u> - The following penalties will be assessed if a game official ejects a player, coach, team personnel, staff member, or game management personnel for non-violent unsportsmanlike behavior:

- Immediate ejection and removal from the venue as defined by sight and sound.
- For the first non-violent ejection of the sport season, a one contest suspension to be served during the next regularly scheduled or postseason contest, unless a previous violent ejection was served. Suspension of a coach or player at the end of the season of play shall carry over to the following season. For the second non-violent ejection of the sport season, a two-game suspension shall be served. For the third non-violent ejection of the sport season, a four-game suspension shall be served. Each subsequent ejection will result in a doubling of the suspension previously served.
- Should a player, coach or team representative receive as their first two ejections, a violent and a non-violent ejection, in any order, they must serve a three (3) contest suspension.
- Penalties shall be imposed automatically by the offending institution with suspensions to be in effect for the next regularly scheduled contest as appearing on the published schedule of the institution at the time of the ejection.

Failure to report and/or comply - Failure to report and/or comply will result in:

• For the first occurrence, the penalties will double for the offending participant, with the head coach also serving the double portion of the penalty and a letter of reprimand shall be sent to the Director of Athletics and the President of the institution.



- For the second occurrence, penalties will double, and a sanction of probation shall be given to the offending institution for that sport in that year.
- Games played during the time of failure to report and/or failure to comply with Article XV, Section 3.A. must be forfeited.

<u>Ejection of the Head Coach</u>: The game shall be terminated, and a forfeit declared if the head coach is ejected and there is no assistant coach or other college staff contractually bound to the institution willing to assume responsibility for the team.

SPECTATOR GUIDELINES

Parents and spectators are extremely important to NJCAA and our Championships. We encourage anyone to come out on the golf course and be a part of this prestigious event. All parents, guardians, and spectators will agree to let participants compete without giving any advice or counsel to them during the stipulated round knowing that a violation may cause a two-stroke penalty against their participant without warning. We highly suggest that absolutely no conversing with players during an official stipulated round occur so that nobody would suspect any rules infringements.

- 1. Spectator carts are permitted during tournament rounds for a daily rental fee of \$25.00. There will be a limited number of carts available on a first come, first serve basis. All spectator carts must remain on cart paths throughout the duration of the tournament.
- 2. Spectators may walk and must stay on the cart paths or in the rough areas. Please remain clear of all fairways throughout the entire Championship week. Again, at no time may a spectator converse with any players during their stipulated round.
- 3. <u>Spectators are not permitted to ride on the back of ANY golf cart</u> unless the Emergency Evacuation Plan is in effect. This plan would take place in the event of threatening Severe Weather. One long blow of the Air Horns will indicate that Severe Weather is in the immediate area and everyone must take cover. Spectators are encouraged to assist in bringing in players and coaches to the designated shelters that are located on the back of this sheet.
- 4. Spectators may not give advice to any player at any time. "Advice is any counsel or suggestion which could influence a player in determining his play, choice of club or method of making a stroke." Penalty for breach of this rule is two-strokes on the player. Talking to competitors during tournament play is not allowed and can be construed as giving advice.
- 5. Spectators are not to give rulings on the Rules of Golf. In stroke play, when a player is in doubt to a rules situation he/she may complete the hole by playing a "second ball" and report the facts to the Rules Committee before returning his/her scorecard. Allow the Championship Rules Officials to administer rulings. You will be brought into a situation ONLY if the Rules Official asks you.
- 6. Alcohol, swearing or abusive language will not be tolerated.
- 7. No cellular phones or beepers are permitted on the golf course during tournament rounds by players. All spectators will be required to have their phone's volume turned off while on the golf course.
- 8. Spectators may act as a forecaddie and assist in searching for any lost golf balls.

Please submit the following information to Kevin Schlegel at <u>kschlegel@odessa.edu</u>by April 22, 2022. Please include high resolution .jpg team photo and vector school logo files.

College Team Information for 2022 Championship Program

College Name:
Number of years offering golf:
Coach's Name:
Number of years coaching college golf:
College Hometown:
Mascot:
Appearances at the National Championship:
Number of Years won:
Number of Years Runner-Up:
Number of Years Top-5:
Individual Champions:
Number of Athletic All-Americans:
PGA Tour Players that participated in Varsity Golf at your college:

ĈHAMPIONSHIP



College Team Information for 2022 Championship Program:

College:				
Address:				
City:		State:	Zip:	
Phone:		Fax:		
College Golf Coach: _				
Golf Coach Email:				
College President:				<u> </u>
Athletic Director:				
District #:	NJCAA Region:			

2022 NJCAA D1 National Golf Tournament Official Team Roster:

	Name:	Class:
1		
2		
3		
4		
5		
6		

Entry Fees: \$900.00 per 5-Man Team or \$160.00 per individual.

Make all Checks Payable to "Odessa College"



Daily Coaching Assignment Sheet

Per NJCAA Rules and Regulations, there will only be two coaches who may give advice on the golf course on any given day. Any player that receives information from any person from his college in violation of USGA Rules of Golf will be penalized appropriately.

The Tournament Officials, NJCAA and the Rules Official will consider penalties for team should a representative, other than the assigned coach, be found giving advice to players on the course.

Coaches who will be giving advice, please print:

College:
Head Golf Coach:
Tuesday, May 10 th :
Wednesday, May 11th th :
Thursday, May 12 th :
Friday, May 13 th :



FINE DESIGNS OFFICIAL CHAMPIONSHIP MERCHANDISE PROVIDER





OFFICIAL NJCAA NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP MERCHANDISE

is provided exclusively by Fine Designs with an expansive list of items and customization options that include adding player numbers, team names and other NJCAA branded graphics to championship apparel. Participating championship teams can order merchandise on-site or directly from Fine Designs. Please see below for details on both options:

Order and Pay Onsite:

We encourage team orders be placed on-site via a team order form and working directly with a Fine Designs rep. Payments can be made by credit/debit card or cash. Merchandise will be provided on-site. Team order forms will be provided on-site at the championship or can be accessed **HERE**. The Team order form must be submitted on-site and is not able to be submitted prior to the event.

Order Direct:

Fine Designs can be contacted via email or phone to place a custom order for a limited selection of merchandise. The order can be paid by credit card or check directly by the college. Merchandise will be shipped to the address and shipping method selected by the college and is not guaranteed to arrive by date(s) of competition. Direct orders are not able to be shipped to the championship site and will not be available for pick-up at the merchandise booth.

Contact Information for Fine Designs to place an order is below, in addition to information on merchandise pricing.





Midlandcustomerservice@finedesigns.com

